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NOTICE OF 8TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 8TH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF ASSETZ PREMIUM HOLDINGS PRIVATE 
LIMITED (“COMPANY”) WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, 29TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023 
AT 10.30 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 
ASSETZ HOUSE, 30 CRESCENT ROAD, BENGALURU 560001 TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESS 
  
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER, AND ADOPT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH  2023 AND THE 
REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON 
 
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company, comprising of the Balance 
Sheet, Statements of Profit & Loss Accounts, Cash Flow Statements and notes to the accounts thereof 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 along with necessary notes Annexed to or forming part of 
such financial statements together with the Report of the Statutory Auditors and the report of the 
Board of Directors be and is hereby considered, adopted and approved; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to file necessary e-Forms with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka and to do all such acts, deeds, 
things which are necessary to give effect to the said Resolution.” 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
2. TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT NEW SET OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE 
COMPANY 
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 5, 14 and all other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with applicable rules made thereunder, Regulation 23 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021 read with Regulation 15(1)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) 
Regulations, 1993 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
force), and subject to approvals, permissions and sanctions from the appropriate authority, if any, the 
new set of Articles of Association of the Company, be and are hereby approved and adopted in 
substitution, and to the entire exclusion, of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of 
Association of the Company. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to 
file online necessary E-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka and to do all such acts, 
deeds, things which are necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited 

 
SD/- 

  Somasundaram Thiruppathi 
Director 

DIN: 07016259 
Date: 27th September 2023 
Place: Bengaluru 
 
 

 
NOTES:  

 
1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is entitled to appoint 

a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a Member of the 
Company. Proxies in the form Annexed hereto must be lodged at the registered office of the 
Company not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. The blank proxy form is 
enclosed. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the 
meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

 
2. Pursuant to provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act 2013, read with the applicable rules 

thereon, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding fifty and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, 
may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for any other member. Proxy 
should carry ID proof which shall be produced at the entrance of the venue.  
 

3. Members are requested to please bring duly filled attendance slip at the meeting which is enclosed.  
 
4. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in 

the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 
 
5. Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to address 

communication to the Company at the registered office at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, so as to 
enable the management to keep the information ready at the meeting. 

 
6. Shareholders are required to intimate changes in their addresses, if any.  
 
7. Shareholders are requested to register their e-Mail ID with the company to enable the company to 

send all communication including notice of the meeting electronically.  
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ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF THE 8th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

 
Annual General Meeting: 
Date:  Friday, 29th day of September 2023 
Time: 10.30 a.m. 
 
Venue:  
Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited 
Assetz House, 30, Crescent Road, Bengaluru 560001  
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 
 
The explanatory statement as required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out all 
material facts relating to Special Businesses mentioned in the accompanying Notice for convening the 
Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company, is as under: 
 
Item No 2: To consider and adopt new set of Articles of Association of the Company 
 
Pursuant to the amendment in Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI NCS Regulations”) by insertion of sub-regulation (6), if an issuer 
is a company whose debt securities are listed as on the effective date of the aforesaid amendment i.e. 
February 2, 2023, it shall ensure that its Articles of Association (“AOA”) require its Board of Directors 
to appoint the person nominated by the debenture trustee(s) in terms of clause (e) of sub-regulation 
(1) of regulation 15 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 
1993 as a director on its Board in the event of: 
 
(i) two consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the debenture holders; or 
 (iii) default in redemption of debentures. 
 
Further, SEBI has mandated the companies with existing debt, to amend its AOA to comply with the 
aforesaid provision, on or before September 30, 2023. 
 
In view of the above, the Articles of Association of the Company needs to be amended to comply with 
the aforesaid provisions.  
 
In the above said reasons, subject to approval of the members of the Company, the Board of Directors 
at their meeting held on 27th September, 2023 approved to insert following clause in the articles of 
Association of the Company: 
  
"RIGHT OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE TO APPOINT A NOMINEE DIRECTOR 
 
The Debenture Holder(s) and the Debenture Trustee shall have the right to appoint a nominee director as a 
director on its Board of Directors at the earliest and not later than one month from the date of receipt of 
nomination from the debenture trustee as per the SEBI (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993 on the Board of 
the Issuer Company ("Nominee Director') in the event of: 
 
(a) Two consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the Debenture Holder(s); or (b) default in Redemption of 
Debentures. 
 
Furthermore, although the existing articles of association of the company was adopted under the 
Companies Act 2013, the clauses are not in the prescribed format given under Table F of First 
Schedule in the Companies Act, 2013. In order to insert the clause in the Articles of Association 
relating the right of debenture trustee to appoint a nominee director and alignment of the clauses of 
existing articles of association of the company with the prescribed format given under Table F of First 
Schedule in the Companies Act is required to be done by way of adoption of new set of articles of 
association. 
 
Accordingly, it is expedient to adopt a new set of Article of Association in place of the existing 
Articles. In terms of Section 5 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the Shareholders is 
required by way of a Special Resolution for amending the AOA. 
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Hence the Board recommends the above resolution to the shareholders for their approval as Special 
Resolutions.  
 
 
None of the directors, key managerial personnel or their relatives are in any way, concerned or 
interested in the said resolution financially or otherwise. 
 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited 

 
 
 

SD/- 
  Somasundaram Thiruppathi 

Director 
DIN: 07016259 

Date: 27th September 2023 
Place: Bengaluru 
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Form MGT-11 
Proxy Form 

 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies. 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
CIN:U45205KA2015PTC079422 
Name of the Company: Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited 
Registered office: Assetz House, 30, Crescent Road, Bangalore 560001       
 
Name of the member (s): 
Registered address: 
E-mail Id: 
Folio No/ Client Id: 
DP ID: 
 
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint. 
 
1. Name: …………………… 
Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature: …………., or failing him 
 
2. Name: …………………… 
Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature: …………., or failing him 
 
3. Name: …………………… 
Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature: ……………. 
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 8th Annual 
general meeting to be held on ____day,____ day of ________2023 at _______p.m. at the Registered 
office of the company situated at Assetz House, 30, Crescent Road, Bangalore 560001 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
Resolution No.- 
Signed this…… day of………….… 2023      
 
Signature of shareholder 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Affix 
Revenue 
stamp 
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Attendance Slip 
8th Annual General Meeting 

 
DP.ID  Name & address of the shareholders 
Client ID/Regd. Folio. No   

 
 
 

No. of Shares held  

 
I certify that I am a member/proxy for the member of the Company. 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on _____day_____ 

day of _____ 2023 at ______p.m. at the registered office of the company situated at 'Assetz House’, 30, 
Crescent Road, Bengaluru 560001. 
 
 
……………………. 
Name of the member/proxy 
(In block letters) 
 …………………… 
Signature of the member/proxy 
 
 
Note: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 
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DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 8th Annual Report together with Audited 
Financial Statements of Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31st 2023. 
 
1.Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company: 

(Amount in INR Rs) 
Particulars Current year ended 

31st March, 2023 
Previous Year 
ended March 
31st, 2022 

Revenue from operations 15,54,09,959 10,59,318 

Other Income - - 

Total Income 15,54,09,959  10,59,318  

Total Expenses 23,10,13,335 15,66,90,890 
Net Loss Before Tax  (7,56,03,376) (15,56,31,572) 

Current Tax Expenses - - 

Deferred Tax  - - 

Net Loss After Tax  (7,56,03,376) (15,56,31,572) 

 
2. Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies: 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. 
 
3. Dividend: 
In view of the losses, your Directors express their inability to recommend any dividend for 
the year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
4. Reserves: 
For the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the Company has not transferred any sum to 
Reserves.  
 
5.Debenture Redemption Reserve: 
In view of the losses, the Company has not created the Debenture Redemption Reserve. 
 
6. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affair: 
Highlights of the Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2023, are 
as under: 
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 EBITDA for the year was Rs. (701.68) Lakhs 
 Net Profit/(Loss) for the year was Rs. (756.03) Lakhs  

 
7. Share capital: 
During the year under review there were no changes in the Capital of the Company. The 
share Capital of the Company is as follows: 

 
Particulars No. of Shares Amount (in Rs.) 

Authorised Capital Class 'A' Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 
each 

38,460 3,84,600 

 Class 'B' Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- 
each 

2,29,000 2,29,00,000 

 Class 'C' Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- 
each 

40,67,154 40,67,15,400 

Total  43,34,614 43,00,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed 
and Paid-up Capital 

Class 'A' Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 
each 

38,460 3,84,600 

 Class 'B' Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- 
each 

2,29,000 2,29,00,000 

 Class 'C' Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- 
each 

651,769 6,51,76,900 

Total  9,19,229 8,84,61,500 

 
8.Debentures: 
During the Year under review, the Company and the Debenture Holders entered into an 
Amendment Agreement to DSA ("Debenture Service Agreement") on February 28, 2023. As 
per the amended agreement, no interest shall be accrued and payable for the financial year 
2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23. 
 
9. Debenture Trustees: 
The Company has appointed Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (formerly known as IL & FS Trust 
Company Limited) IL & FS Financial Centreplot No C22 G Block Bandra Kurla Complex 
Bandra East Mumbai 400051 as Debenture Trustees. 
 
10.Credit Rating: 
Company has obtained a Credit Rating on its listed Non-Convertible Debentures from ICRA 
Limited. There has been no change in the credit rating and currently [ICRA] BB- (SO)/ is the 
rating given on listed Non-Convertible Debentures. 
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11. Change in the nature of business, if any: 
No Change in the nature of business of the company during the period under review.  
 
12. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to 
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report: 
 
No, Material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company has 
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report. 
 
13. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future: 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 
14. Deposits: 
During the period under review the company has not accepted any deposit pursuant to 
section 73 of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
15. Statutory Auditors:  
Deloitte Haskins & Sells (FRN: 008072S),Chartered Accountants, Bangalore, who are the 
statutory auditors of the Company, hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the year 2025 as per the appointment made by Members in the Annual 
General Meeting held on 31st December 2020. 
 
16. Auditors’ Report: 
The observations of the auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, in the 
opinion of the Directors, do not call for further comments. There is no major Qualified 
Opinion in the Auditor's Report which requires comments. 
 
17. Extract of the annual return: 
The draft Annual Return of the Company can be viewed on the Company’s website at the 
following weblink: www.assetzproperty.com 

18. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo:  
(i) The Company is not involved in any such business which includes the excessive 
consumption of energy or research and development or technology absorption. 

(ii)  Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
There has been no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo in the current year. 
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19. Board of Directors: 
As on March 31, 2023, the strength of the Board of Directors was 3: 
 
The composition of the Board as on 31st March 2023 is as under:  
 
 

Name of the Director Designation Date of appointment 
Ben Cameron Melville Salmon Director 01/09/2016 

Somasundaram Thiruppathi Director 24/03/2015 
AjethaBilagali Srinivasa Director 03/12/2018 

 
Changes in the Board of Directors during 2022-2023: 
There were no changes in the Board of Directors during the year 2022-2023 
 
20. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors: 
The Board of Directors met 7 times in the financial year 2022-2023 which is on 30.04.2022, 
23.06.2022, 30.09.2022, 07.11.2022, 09.01.2023, 30.01.2023 and 13.02.2023. The maximum 
interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days as specified under sub-section (1) 
of section 173 of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
21. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186: 
There are no loans given, guarantees provided or investments made by the Company as per 
sub-section (2) of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
22. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 
There are contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, however certain arms 
length transactions are disclosed in Form AOC -2 attached to this report. 
 
23. Risk management policy: 
Company is regularly reviewing the overall business conditions as well as industrial scenario 
to cover the risk pertaining to the current business of the company. 
 
24. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that— 
(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
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fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the company for that period; 
(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
(f) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively 
 
25. Details of Establishment of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees: 
As per section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not required to establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and 
Employees to report genuine concerns.  
 
26. Compliance under Secretarial Standard: 
The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively. 
 
27. Cost Records: 
The company was not required to maintain the cost records as required under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
28. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for 
every individual working in the Company’s premises through various interventions and 
practices. The Company endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from 
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.  
 
The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. 
The policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees as well as contract/indirect 
employees and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of 
sexual harassment. There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is responsible 
for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided 
in the policy.  
 
During the year ended 31st March, 2023 the Internal Complaints Committee have not 
received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment. 
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29. Corporate Social Responsibility: 
During the year, Company did not meet the criteria for the applicability of Section 135(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
 
30. Human Resource & Personnel: 
The number of employees in the Company during the year under review is one. 
 
31. Annual Evaluation of Directors, Committee and Board: 
In terms of section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act 2013, in the absence of functioning of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has adopted a Performance 
Evaluation Framework and has identified criteria upon which every Director shall be 
evaluated. 
 
With regard to the evaluation of the Board, all the directors evaluated the performance of 
each other pursuant to the evaluation framework.   
 
32. Internal Financial Control: 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness 
in the design or operation was observed. 
 
33. The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of 
the financial year. 
There are no applications made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review. 
 
34. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one 
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions along with the reasons thereof. 
There was no one time settlement done during the year under review. Hence no valuation 
was required to be done. 
 
35. Acknowledgements: 
The Directors thank the Company's, Customers, Vendors and Shareholders for their 
continuous support. Your Directors also thank the Governments, Banker and Financial 
Institutes for their co-operation. 
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The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every member of the Assetz 
Premium Holdings Private Limited. 
 

 
             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                             
             
 
SD/-             SD/- 
Director 
Somasundaram Thiruppathi                    
DIN: 07016259                                                        

Director 
Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa 
DIN: 08262382 

 
  
                         
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 27th September `2023 
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FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under fourth proviso 

thereto. 

1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:  

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship - 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction - 

c)  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction - 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

- 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements 

or transactions’ 

- 

f)  Date of approval by the Board - 

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any - 

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in General 

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 

- 

 

2.    i) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

   1. Name (s) of the related party   Assetz Property Management Services 

Private Limited 

2. Nature of relationship Common Directors 

3. Nature  of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 

Development management  

4. Duration  of  the contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 

NA 
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5. Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or 

arrangements  or  transaction including  

the  value, if  any 

Development management fees 

amounting to Rs. 97,56,950/- 

 

   

6. 

Date of approval by the Board NA  

       

7. 

Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 

 

ii) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

   1. Name (s) of the related party   Assetz Property Management Services 

Private Limited 

2. Nature of relationship Common Directors 

3. Nature  of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 

Liasoning and consultancy charges 

4. Duration  of  the contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 

NA 

5. Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or 

arrangements  or  transaction including  

the  value, if  any 

Liasoning and consultancy charges 

amounting to Rs. 20,65,000/- 

 

   

6. 

Date of approval by the Board NA 

       

7. 

Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 

iii) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

   1. Name (s) of the related party   Assetz Property Management Services 

Private Limited 

2. Nature of relationship Common Directors 

3. Nature  of contracts/arrangements/ Incentives to sales & marketing team for 
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transaction service availed 

4. Duration  of  the contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 

NA 

5. Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or 

arrangements  or  transaction including  

the  value, if  any 

Incentives to sales & marketing team for 

service availed amounting to Rs. 

50,76,083/- 

 

   

6. 

Date of approval by the Board NA 

       

7. 

Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 

iv) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

   1. Name (s) of the related party   Assetz Property Management Services 

Private Limited 

2. Nature of relationship Common Directors 

3. Nature  of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 

Allocated marketing & advertisement cost 

4. Duration  of  the contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 

NA 

5. Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or 

arrangements  or  transaction including  

the  value, if  any 

Allocated marketing & advertisement cost 

amounting to Rs. 54,65,063/- 

 

   

6. 

Date of approval by the Board NA 

       

7. 

Amount paid as advances, if any NA 
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v) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

   1. Name (s) of the related party   Assetz Property Management Services 

Private Limited 

2. Nature of relationship Common Directors 

3. Nature  of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 

Insurance  

4. Duration  of  the contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 

NA 

5. Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or 

arrangements  or  transaction including  

the  value, if  any 

Insurance cost amounting to Rs. 

22,000/- 

 

   

6. 

Date of approval by the Board NA 

       

7. 

Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 

 

 

    ii) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

   1. Name (s) of the related party   Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited 

 

2. Nature of relationship Common Directors 

3. Nature  of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 

Allocated marketing & advertisement cost 

4. Duration  of  the contracts/ arrangements/ 

transaction 

NA 

5. Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or 

arrangements  or  transaction including  

the  value, if  any 

Allocated marketing & advertisement cost 

amounting to Rs. 64,308/- 

 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 
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7. 

Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 SD/-      SD/- 

SOMASUNDARAM THIRUPPATHI AJETHA BILAGALI SRINIVASA 
DIRECTOR                          DIRECTOR 

DIN: 07016259                      DIN: 08262382 
 

 

Place: Bangalore 

Date: 27th September, 2023 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To The Members of Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Assetz Premium Holdings Private 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its loss, total 
comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.  

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. we have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 
1 Assessment of net realisable value 

(NRV) of inventories  

Assessment of realisable value of 
inventory as a key audit matter 
considering:  

· Assessment of cost of completion of the
project involves key judgments and
estimates;

· The revenue expected to be generated
from projects depend on future sale
prices of the unsold units, which involves

Principal audit procedures performed: 

We assessed the Company’s process for the 
valuation of inventories.  

Our audit approach consisted testing of the 
design and operating effectiveness of the 
internal controls and substantive testing as 
follows:  

 Evaluated the design of the internal
controls relating to the valuation of
inventories.



significant judgement and is dependent 
on the realisable price from the market.  
 
· The Company's sales contracts could 
result in onerous obligations on the 
Company in the event of cost of 
construction exceeding the sales value of 
the units;  
 
At the year-end, significant amount of 
inventory has been recognised on the 
balance sheet.  

 
 Tested the operating effectiveness of 
controls for the review and approval of 
estimates involved for the expected cost of 
completion of projects including 
construction cost incurred, construction 
budgets and net realizable value. We 
carried out a combination of procedures 
involving enquiry and inspection of 
evidence in respect of operation of these 
controls.  

 
We have tested the net realisable value of 
inventories with the following procedures:  
 
 Enquired with the Company’s personnel to 
understand the basis of computation and 
justification for the estimated recoverable 
amounts of the unsold units.  
 

 Performed sensitivity analysis of expected 
average selling price per square feet and 
comparison to budgeted costs per square 
feet for the unsold inventory.  

 
 Assessed the appropriateness of work in 
progress (inventory) on the balance sheet 
by evaluating the underlying 
documentation to identify possible delays 
in achieving milestones. Assessed the 
possibility of change in estimated costs to 
complete the remaining performance 
obligations. 

  
 Performed test of details to determine 
reasonableness of carrying value of 
inventory.  

 
2 Debenture redemption premium for 

non-convertible redeemable 
debentures  
 
Debenture redemption premium is 
payable on project achieving 
distributable free cash flows in future. 
Determination of the aforesaid of 
cashflows involves significant 
judgements and estimates. Hence, the 
accounting for debenture redemption 
premium is considered as key audit 
matter.  
 
 

Principle audit procedures performed:  
 
 
 
We assessed the Company’s process for 
evaluation of determining debenture 
redemption premium to be recognised.  
 
Our audit approach consisted testing of the 
design and operating effectiveness of the 
internal controls and substantive testing as 
follows:  
 Evaluated the design of the internal 
controls relating to the evaluation of 
debenture redemption premium. 
 
 Tested the operating effectiveness 
of controls for the review and approval of 
estimates involved for evaluation of free 
cash flows. 

  
We have tested the debenture redemption 
premium with the following procedures: 



 
 Review the terms of Debenture 

Trust Deed; 
 Read and analyzed select key 

correspondence, and external legal 
opinions on applicability of 
payment of debenture redemption 
premium subject to availability of 
free cash flows; 
 

 Discussed with appropriate senior 
management and evaluated 
management's underlying key 
assumptions in estimating the free 
cash flows; and 

 
 Assessed the reasonableness of 

the management's estimate of the 
free cash flows projections for the 
Company.  

 
3 Land Dispute Matter  

 
There is dispute on the title relating to 
one land parcel acquired by the 
Company. The Company has withheld 
certain portion of purchase 
consideration, which is due to be 
released to sellers of one of the land 
parcel upon satisfactory resolution of the 
ongoing litigation between sellers and 
certain parties.  
 
We identified the dispute on this land 
parcel as a key audit matter because of 
the significance of the amount paid on 
acquisition of these land parcel and 
potential impact on the Company’s 
operations if the outcome is not 
favourable to the Company.  

Principal audit procedures performed 
  
We assessed the Company’s process for 
monitoring and resolution of land dispute 
matters.  
Our audit approach consisted testing of the 
design and operating effectiveness of the 
internal controls and substantive testing as 
follows:  
 
 Evaluated the design of the internal 
controls and tested the operating 
effectiveness of controls for the review and 
monitoring the impact of land disputes. 
 
  Obtained and verified minutes of 
board meetings and shareholder meetings 
authorizing acquisition of these land 
parcels; 
 
 Ensured that the title of the land is 
in the name of the Company; 
 
 Conducted inquiries with the 
management and the Company's in-house 
legal team and obtained confirmations 
from such personnel; 
 
 Evaluated the adequacy of 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 

 
 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 
 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements   

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity. of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

 

 



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

 
 



 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.  
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected 
therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above. 
 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 

 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the 
managerial remuneration is not applicable. 

 
i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  
 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 

in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the financial statements. 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 
 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the note 40 to the financial statements no funds have 



been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the note 40 to the financial statements, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

 
v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not 

proposed final dividend for the year. 
 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books 
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 



 

 

 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 

 
 
 
 

Sathya P Koushik  
(Partner) 

(Membership No. 206920) 
(UDIN:23206920BGYMFF9836) 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 29, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Assetz 
Premium Holdings Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements  
 
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 



(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 

 
 
 
 

Sathya P Koushik  
(Partner) 

(Membership No. 206920) 
(UDIN:23206920BGYMFF9836) 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 29, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
section of our report of even date)  

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books 
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we state that: 

i. (a)  A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.    

B. The Company does not hold any intangible assets. 

 
(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management 
which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at reasonable intervals. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 
(c) The Company does not have any   immovable properties and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) 
of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the year. The 
Company does not have any intangible assets.  
 
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 
March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 
 

ii. (a) Having regard to the nature of inventory, the physical verification by way of verification of title 
deeds, site visits by the Management and certification of extent of work completion by competent 
persons, are at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is 
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its operations and no 
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such 
physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the 
Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions 
and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

iii. The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
  

iv. The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities 
and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
v.  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, 

reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

vi. Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under clause (vi) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

 



vii. (a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service 
Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities. We 
have been informed that the provisions of the Provident Fund and  Employees’ State Insurance Act, 
1948 are not applicable to the Company. 

 
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 
 
 
(b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited on 
account of disputes as on March 31, 2023. 

 
viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or 

disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during 
the year. 

 
ix. (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or 

in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 
 
(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, 
applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. 

 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

 

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and 
hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

 

x. (a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year 
and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(b)  During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 



 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act for all 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. The 
Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are not applicable to the Company. 

 

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and the nature of its business. 

 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company covering the period April 
01, 2021 to March 31, 2022 that were issued after the balance sheet date. 

 

xv.  In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause 
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 701.69 Lakhs during the financial year 
covered by our audit and Rs 1,501.90 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 

 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting  the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report which is not mitigated 
(refer note 39 to the financial statements ) indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date 
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 
as and when they fall due. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



xx. The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees 
one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately 
preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable 
for the year. 

 

 
 
 
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells  
Chartered Accountants  

(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)  
 
 
 
 
 

Sathya P Koushik  
(Partner)  

(Membership No. 206920)  
(UDIN: 23206920BGYMFF9836) 

Place: Bengaluru  
Date: May 29, 2023 

 



(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes  As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31,2022 

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 98.35   212.42   
Other non-current assets 5 0.01   38.05   

Total non-current assets 98.36   250.47   

Current assets
Inventories 6 30,120.24   28,685.09   
Financial assets

- Trade receivables 7 786.14   364.15   
- Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,836.06   4,273.20   
- Other financial assets 9 34.67   28.91   

Other current assets 10 983.98   1,102.11   
Total current assets 34,761.09   34,453.46   

Total assets 34,859.45   34,703.93   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 
Equity share capital 11 884.62   884.62   
Other equity 12 (2,005.13)   (1,787.03)   

Total equity (1,120.51)   (902.41)   

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 13 10,855.22   14,704.78   
- Other non-current financial liabilities 14 -   5,553.22   

10,855.22   20,258.00   
Current Liabilities

Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 390.91  1,976.79   
- Trade payables 16
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 53.41   46.56   
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,418.81   606.64  

and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities 17 -   0.19   

Other current liabilities 18 21,534.61   10,800.23   
Provisions 19 1,843.57   1,917.93   

25,241.31   15,348.33   

Total equity and liabilities 34,976.02   34,703.93   

Significant accounting policies 3
Check
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board,
Chartered Accountants Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

Sathya P Koushik Somasundaram Thiruppathi Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 206920 DIN: 07016259 DIN: 08262382

Nikita Bhagwani
Company Secretary
Membership No. A43721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023 Date: May 29, 2023

Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023



(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

 Particulars  Notes 
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2022 

Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 1,554.10                                 10.59                                      
Total income 1,554.10                                 10.59                                      

Expenses
Cost of revenue 21 1,548.59                                 777.50                                    
Employee benefits expenses 23 15.56                                      8.90                                         
Finance costs 22 -                                           -                                           
Depreciation 4 54.35                                      54.42                                      
Other expenses 24 691.63                                    726.09                                    
Total expenses 2,310.13                                 1,566.91                                 

Loss before tax (756.03)                                  (1,556.32)                               

Tax expenses:
Current tax -                                           -                                           
Deferred tax credit/ (charge) -                                           -                                           

-                                          -                                          

Loss after tax A (756.03)                                  (1,556.32)                               

Other comprehensive income for the year B -                                          

Total comprehensive loss for the year (A+B) (756.03)                                  (1,556.32)                               

Loss per share 
Basic and diluted loss per share 28
 - Class A equity shares of Rs 10 each (1.76)                                       (3.62)                                       
 - Class B equity shares of Rs 100 each (17.58)                                     (36.19)                                     
 - Class C equity shares of Rs 100 each (17.58)                                     (36.19)                                     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board,
Chartered Accountants Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

Sathya P Koushik Somasundaram Thiruppathi Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 206920 DIN: 07016259 DIN: 08262382

Nikita Bhagwani
 Company Secretary

Membership No. A43721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023 Date: May 29, 2023

Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
 Statement of Profit and Lossfor the year ended March 31, 2023



(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (756.03)                                         (1,556.32)                                      
Adjustments :

Depreciation expenses 54.34                                             54.42                                             
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (701.69)                                         (1,501.90)                                     
Changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories (1,370.15)                                      (2,007.81)                                      
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (421.99)                                         163.43                                          
Increase in other financial assets (5.76)                                              (28.45)                                           
Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets 118.13                                          (256.11)                                         
Increase in trade payables 819.01                                          295.95                                          
Decrease in other non-current financial liabilities (3,679.21)                                      -                                                 
Decrease in other financial liabilities (1,586.07)                                      -                                                 
Increase in other current liabilities 12,374.91                                     6,773.35                                       
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (74.35)                                           777.51                                          

Cash generated from operations 5,472.83                                       4,215.97                                       
Income taxes paid 38.04                                             (23.01)                                           

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 5,510.87                                       4,192.96                                       

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (5.27)                                              (6.11)                                              

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (5.27)                                             (6.11)                                             

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings -                                                 205.43                                          
Repayment of borrowings (1,640.53)                                      (399.07)                                         
Interests paid (5,185.65)                                      (226.94)                                         

Net cash flows used in financing activities (C) (6,826.18)                                     (420.58)                                         

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,320.58)                                     3,766.27                                       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 4,273.20                                       506.93                                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note below) 2,952.63                                       4,273.20                                       

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks 1,008.40                                       746.23                                          
- in bank deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 1,827.66                                        3,526.97                                       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,836.06                                       4,273.20                                       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board,
Chartered Accountants Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

Sathya P Koushik Somasundaram Thiruppathi Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 206920 DIN: 07016259 DIN: 08262382

Nikita Bhagwani
Company Secretary
Membership No. A43721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023 Date: May 29, 2023

Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023



Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 

2022
Proceeds Repayment Others As at March 31, 

2023
Current borrowings 1,976.79               -                                     1,640.53        (54.65)             390.91                  

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Amount Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,  

2021
Proceeds/ impact of 
IndAS 116

Repayment Others As at March 31, 
2022

Current borrowings 2,120.21               205.43                               399.07            (50.22)             1,976.79              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone  financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Chartered Accountants Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

Sathya P Koushik Somasundaram Thiruppathi Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 206920 DIN: 07016259 DIN: 08262382

Nikita Bhagwani
Company Secretary
Membership No. A43721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023 Date: May 29, 2023

Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Regd. Office : Assetz House, 30, Crescent Road, Bengaluru -560001

CIN - U45205KA2015PTC079422
www.assetzproperty.com Tel: +91 80 46674000



Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity 

(Amount Rs. in lakhs except number of shares)
A. Equity Share Capital Number Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021
Class 'A' Equity shares  of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 38,460                          3.85                               
Class 'B' Equity shares  of Rs. 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 2,29,000                       229.00                          
Class 'C' Equity shares  of Rs. 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 6,51,769                       651.77                          
Issue of share capital -                                 -                                 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 9,19,229                       884.62                          
Issue of share capital -                                 -                                 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 9,19,229                       884.62                          

B. Other Equity

Equity component of 
Compulsory 
Convertible 
Debentures

Retained earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2021 1,820.72                       (2,589.34)                     (768.62)                         
Loss for the year -                                 (1,556.32)                      (1,556.32)                     
Add: Contribution during the year (waiver of interest) 537.91                          -                                 537.91                          
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,358.63                       (4,145.66)                     (1,787.03)                     

Balance as at April 1, 2022 2,358.63                       (4,145.66)                     (1,787.03)                     
Loss for the year -                                 (756.03)                         (756.03)                         
Add: Contribution during the year (waiver of interest) 537.93                          -                                 537.93                          
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,896.55                       (4,901.69)                     (2,005.13)                     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Chartered Accountants Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

Sathya P Koushik Somasundaram Thiruppathi Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 206920 DIN: 07016259 DIN: 08262382

Nikita Bhagwani
Company Secretary

 Membership No. A43721

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023 Date: May 29, 2023

Particulars Total equity

Reserves and surplus



Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

4 Property, plant and equipment
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  Buildings  Plant & Machinery  Vehicles  Office 
Equipment 

 Furniture & 
Fixtures 

 Computers  Total  

Cost (A)
At April 01, 2021 246.39                                325.97           4.55               4.11                      -                  7.58                                    588.60 

Additions -             -                                -           0.19             -                  5.92              6.11                                       
Transfers from CWIP -             -                                -           -               -                  -                -                                         

At March 31, 2022 246.39      325.97                         4.55         4.30             -                  13.50            594.71                                  

Additions 3.49                1.78              5.27                                       
Transfers from CWIP -                                         

At March 31, 2023 246.39      325.97                         4.55         4.30             3.49                15.28            599.98                                  

Depreciation (B)
At April 01, 2021 139.53      113.91                         1.63         2.28             -                  5.55              262.90                                  

Charge for the year (d) 49.28        65.11                           0.57         0.86             -                  3.58                                                 119.40 
Inventorised                 -                             (64.98)               -                     -                        -                      -                                      (64.98)
Charge to statement of profit and loss 49.28        0.14                              0.57         0.86             -                  3.58              54.42                                    

At March 31, 2022 188.81      179.02                         2.20         3.14             -                  9.13              382.29                                  

Charge for the half-year (d) 49.28        65.11                           0.57         0.85             0.69                2.83                                                 119.33 
Inventorised                 -                             (64.98)               -                     -                        -                      -                                      (64.98)
Charge to statement of profit and loss 49.28        0.13                              0.57         0.85             0.69                2.83              54.35                                    

At March 31, 2023 238.09      244.13                         2.77         3.99             0.69                11.96            501.62                                  

Carrying amounts (A-B)  
At March 31, 2022 57.58        146.95                         2.35         1.16             -                  4.37              212.42                                  
At March 31, 2023 8.30          81.84                           1.78         0.31             2.80                3.32              98.35                                    



Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

5 Other non-current assets
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Income Tax 0.01                                 38.05                               

0.01                                 38.05                               

6 Inventories
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Properties under development* 30,120.24                       28,685.09                      

30,120.24                      28,685.09                      

* Refer Note 30 on contingent liabilities and commitments

Carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for borrowings                                      -                            1,640.53 

Movement of Properties under development

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022

At the commencement of the year (A)                        28,685.09                        26,135.80 

Add: Cost incurred during the year
Construction and infrastructure cost (including approvals, consultant cost  ) 2,671.34                         2,039.07                         
Finance cost inventorised (net off Interest Income, if any)                              247.43                              445.25 
Depreciation on PPE inventorised                                64.98                                64.98 

Sub- total (B)                          2,983.75                          2,549.29 
Less: Cost of revenue recognised (Refer note 21) (C)                          1,548.59                                      -   
At the end of the year (A+B-C) 30,120.25                      28,685.09                      

7 Trade receivables
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables* 786.14                             364.15                             

786.14                             364.15                             

*The above represents milestones billing pending receipt of monies from customer.

Trade Receivables Ageing as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Not due
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

-                      560.42                 102.59           123.13             -                                   786.14                             

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in credit 

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– 
considered good

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit risk

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

-                      560.42                 102.59           123.13             -                                   786.14                             



Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

Trade Receivables Ageing as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Not due
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

-                      344.97                 -                 19.18               -                                   364.15                             

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in credit 

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– 
considered good

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit risk

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired

-                      -                       -                 -                   -                                   -                                   

-                      344.97                 -                 19.18               -                                   364.15                             

8 Cash and cash equivalents
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Balance with banks
- in current accounts 1,008.40                         746.23                             
- in bank deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 1,827.66                         3,526.97                         

2,836.06                         4,273.20                         

9 Other financial assets
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Security Deposit 1.45                                 1.45
Interest receivable on fixed deposits 33.22                               27.46                               

34.67                               28.91                               

10 Other current assets
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Balance with government authorities 425.79                                                          591.44 
Advances for supply of goods and rendering of services:
- to related parties -                                                                  22.05 
- to others 558.19                             488.62                             

983.98                             1,102.11                         



Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

11 Equity share capital
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs except number of shares)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Authorised

Equity shares
                        3.85                         3.85 

                    229.00                     229.00 

                4,067.15                 4,067.15 

4,300.00                4,300.00                
Issued, subscribed and paid up 

Equity shares
                        3.85                         3.85 

                    229.00                     229.00 

                    651.77                     651.77 

884.62                   884.62                   

a. List of persons holding more than 5 percent shares in equity shares of the Company

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Class 'A' equity shares
Assetz Premium Homes Pte. Ltd. 10,000                    26% 10,000                    26%
IPFII Singapore 7 Pte. Ltd. 28,460                    74% 28,460                    74%

38,460                   100% 38,460                    100%
Class 'B' equity shares
Assetz Premium Homes Pte. Ltd. 2,29,000                100% 2,29,000                100%

2,29,000                100% 2,29,000                100%
Class 'C' equity shares
IPFII Singapore 7 Pte. Ltd. 6,51,769                100% 6,51,769                100%

6,51,769                100% 6,51,769                100%

b. Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars
No. of shares  Amount

(Rs. lakhs) 
No. of shares  Amount

(Rs. lakhs) 

Class 'A' 
At the commencement of the year 38,460                   3.85                        38,460                   3.85                        
Add: Shares issued during the year -                          -                          -                          -                          
At the end of the year 38,460                   3.85                       38,460                   3.85                       

Class 'B' 
At the commencement of the year 2,29,000                229.00                   2,29,000                229.00                    
Add: Shares issued during the year -                          -                          -                          -                          
At the end of the year 2,29,000                229.00                   2,29,000                229.00                   

Class 'C' 
At the commencement of the year 6,51,769                651.77                   6,51,769                651.77                    
Add: Shares issued during the year -                          -                          -                          -                          
At the end of the year 6,51,769                651.77                   6,51,769                651.77                   

38,460 (Previous year: 38,460) class 'A' equity shares of INR 10 each

229,000 (Previous year: 229,000) class 'B' equity shares of INR 100 each

4,067,154 (Previous year: 4,067,154) class 'C' equity shares of INR 100 each

38,460 (Previous year: 38,460) class 'A' equity shares of INR 10 each

Equity shares

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2023

229,000 (Previous year: 229,000) class 'B' equity shares of INR 100 each

651,769 (Previous year: 651,769) class 'C' equity shares of INR 100 each

Name of the share holder As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2022



Assetz Premium Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

11 Equity share capital (continued)

c. Shares held by Holding / Ultimate Holding Company and / or their subsidiaries / associates:

Name of the shareholder
No of shares  Amount

(Rs. lakhs) 
No of shares  Amount

(Rs. lakhs) 

10,000                   1.00                        10,000                   1.00                        

6,51,769                651.77                   2,29,000                229.00                   

6,61,769                652.77                   2,39,000                230.00                   

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

Class 'A' equity shares: 

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

Class 'B' equity shares: 

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Class 'C' equity shares: 

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

e. During the period since March 24, 2015 (date of incorporation)

- No bonus shares have been issued by the Company and the Company has not bought back any shares.

In the event that the Company merges or amalgamates with any other company, the holders of Class B shares will be issued similar 
instruments in the surviving company on the same terms & conditions, at a price which shall be adjusted to reflect the merger/ 
amalgamation exchange ratio.

All the Class C shares shall be entitled to dividend and/or distribution in accordance with the terms set out in the Shareholders Agreement 
dated April 22, 2016.
All the Class C shares shall be cumulatively entitled to one vote (that is, equivalent to voting right on one Class A share) in a shareholders 
meeting of the Company.
In the event that the Company merges or amalgamates with any other company, the holders of Class C shares will be issued similar 
instruments in the surviving company on the same terms & conditions, at a price which shall be adjusted to reflect the merger/ 
amalgamation exchange ratio.

- There have been no issue of shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

All the Class B shares shall be cumulatively entitled to one vote (that is, equivalent to voting right on one Class A share) in a Shareholders 
meeting of the Company.

As at March 31, 2023

Class 'B' equity shares of INR 100 each, fully 
paid-up

All the Class B shares shall be entitled to dividend and/or distribution in accordance with the terms set out in the Shareholders Agreement 
dated April 22, 2016; and special dividend in accordance with formula set out in Shareholders Agreement, in the event of surplus free cash 
flows.

As at  March 31, 2022

All the Class A shares shall be entitled to dividend and/or distribution in accordance with the terms set out in the Shareholders Agreement 
dated April 22, 2016.
Each Class A share shall be entitled to one vote per share.
In the event that the Company merges or amalgamates with any other company, the holders of Class A shares will be issued similar 
instruments in the surviving company on the same terms & conditions, at a price which shall be adjusted to reflect the merger/ 
amalgamation exchange ratio.

Assetz Premium Homes Pte. Ltd. (Holding 
Company)
Class 'A' equity shares of INR 10 each, fully 
paid-up
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12 Other Equity
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Retained Earnings
At the commencement of the year (4,145.66)               (2,589.34)                  
Add: Net loss after tax transferred from statement of profit and loss (756.03)                  (1,556.32)                  
At the end of the year                (4,901.69)                   (4,145.66)

Equity component of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (refer note 13)
At the commencement of the year 2,358.63                1,820.72                   
Add: Contribution during the year (waiver of interest) 537.93                     537.91                       
At the end of the year                  2,896.56                     2,358.63 

(2,005.13)               (1,787.03)                  

13 Non-current borrowings
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

                 6,779.75 9,227.80                   

                 2,382.07 3,242.20                   

(27.13)                     (15.28)                        

                     659.14 1,050.06                    

                 1,061.39 1,200.00                    

10,855.22              14,704.78                 

(a) Term, Interest, Redemption and Voting Rights - Non-convertible redeemable debentures: Series A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Unsecured

Less : Deferred transaction cost

3,415,385 (Previous Year: 3,415,385) debentures of Rs. 100 each held by IPFII Singapore 7 Pte. Ltd.

Loans and advances from a related party (refer note (e) below and note 25)

377 (Previous year: 377) Series B debentures of face value Rs. 10.00 lakhs each, Rs. 6.32 lakhs each paid up
(Previous year: Rs. 8.60 lakhs each) and held by Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (formerly known as IL & FS Trust
Company Limited) in trust for APG Premium Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Compulsorily convertible debentures (refer note (c) below and note 25)

Term: The tenor of the Series A Debentures shall be 9 years from the date allotment (i.e.August 31, 2025)  or such extended term as determined by 
the Board with the prior consent of debenture holders.

Interest: The Company has listed NCD Series A & Series B. Debenture holders are entitled to receive interest at a coupon rate of 14% per annum on 

the paid up amount. As per the amendment made to the Debenture Subscription Agreement with the dedenture holders dated 28th February 2023, 

the first date of payment of interest accrued for Financial year 2017-18 and  2018-19 shall be 1st October 2022 (or such other date as may be 

mutually agreed by the Parties). Subsequent interest payments shall be due at the end of every successive 3-month period. 

As per aforesaid amended agreement, no interest shall be accrued and payable for financial year 2019-20, 2020-21,2021-22 and 2022-23.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, interest accrued and outstanding for the financial year 2017-18 and 2018-19  was fully paid by the Company.  Also 

refer note 15.

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (refer note (a), (b) and (d) below, note 25 and note 32)

1,073 (Previous year: 1,073) Series A debentures of face value Rs. 10.00 lakhs each, Rs. 6.32 lakhs each paid-
up (Previous year: Rs. 8.60 lakhs each) and held by Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (formerly known as IL & FS
Trust Company Limited) in trust for IPFII Singapore 4 Pte. Ltd.

Redemption: The Series A debentures shall be redeemed at face value provided that interest payment (and default coupon, if applicable), have been 
made and redemption premium has been paid.

The Company and the Debenture Holders have entered into an Amendment Agreement to DSA  ("Debenture Subscription Agreement")  on February 
28, 2023. As per the revised terms,  Series A and Series B debentures shall be partially redeemed as approved by the Board and consented by the 
holders of the Series A and Series B Debentures (Refer note 32).

Voting Rights: The Series A debentures shall not carry any voting rights.
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13 Non-current borrowings (continued)

(b) Term, Interest, Redemption and Voting Rights - Non-convertible redeemable debentures: Series B

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii)

(iv)

(c) Term, Interest and Redemption - Compulsorily convertible debentures (CCDs)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(d) Debenture Redemption Reserve

(e) Interest and repayment  - Loans and advances from a related party (Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited)

(i)

(ii)

(f) The conversion/redemption dates of debentures based on the descending order of maturity:

Redemption/ 
conversion Date
August 31, 2025
August 31, 2025
August 31, 2025

Interest: The Company has listed NCD Series A & Series B. Debenture holders are entitled to receive interest at a coupon rate of 14% per annum on 
the paid up amount. As per the amendment made to the Debenture Subscription Agreement with the dedenture holders dated February 28, 2023, 
the first date of payment of interest accrued for Financial year 2017-18, 2018-19 shall be October 01, 2022 (or such other date as may be mutually 
agreed by the Parties). Subsequent interest payments shall be due at the end of every successive 3-month period. 
As per aforesaid amended agreement, no interest shall be accrued and payable for financial year 2019-20, 2020-21,2021-22 and 2022-23.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, interest accrued and outstanding for the financial year 2017-18 and 2018-19  was fully paid by the Company.  Also 
refer note 15.

Redemption: The Series B debentures shall be redeemed at face value provided that interest payment (and default coupon, if applicable), have been 

made and redemption premium has been paid.

The Company and the Debenture Holders have entered into an Amendment Agreement to DSA  ("Debenture Subscription Agreement")  on February 

28, 2023. As per the revised terms,  Series A and Series B debentures shall be partially redeemed as approved by the Board and consented by the 

holders of the Series A and Series B Debentures (Refer note 32).
Voting Rights: The Series B debentures shall not carry any voting rights.

Term: The CCDs shall convert on the earlier of the following:

(a) the date falling 9 (nine) years from the Closing Date (the "CCD Maturity Date, i.e., August 31, 2025"); or 

(b) the date on which any restriction is imposed on Transfer of CCDs by a person resident outside India; or 

(c) there is a change in Law which does not permit the CCD holder to continue holding the CCDs; or 

(d) upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, at the option of the Securities Investor; or 

(e) the date of commencement of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company; or 

(f) as mutually agreed by the Securities Investor and the Promoters.

3,415,385 compulsorily convertible debentures
1,073 Series A non-convertible redeemable debentures
377 Series B non-convertible redeemable debentures

Particulars

Term: The tenor of the Series B Debentures shall be 9 years from the date allotment (i.e.August 31, 2025) or such extended term as determined by 
the Board with the prior consent of debenture holders.

The loan is repayable upon the later of: 
a) expiry of 15 years from the date of loan; and 
b) all the monies due and payable to the holders of the CCDs have been paid.

The loan carries an interest rate of 12% per annum. The Company shall be obligated to pay any accrued interest only upon the earlier of: 
a) all the monies due and payable to the holders of the CCDs issued by the Company having been paid, whether under an agreement or law, or 
b) having received consent of the holders of a majority of the CCDs for paying any accrued interest on the lnter corporate loan.
c) During the year 2020-21, the related party has waived off interest on the said loan for the current financial year.

Conversion Ratio and Price: The CCDs will convert into Class C Shares in the ratio of 1:1. Accordingly the conversion price of CCD is Rs. 100.

Interest: Until conversion of the CCDs, the same will carry and accrue a gross interest at the rate of 15.75% per annum. As per the amendment to 

the agreement with the dedenture holders dated December 28, 2022, the first date of payment of interest accrued for Financial year 2017-18 and 

2018-19 shall be October 01, 2022 (or such other date as may be mutually agreed by the Parties). Subsequent interest payments shall be payable 

yearly.

As per aforesaid amended agreement, no interest shall be accrued and payable for financial year 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, interest accrued and outstanding for the financial year 2017-18 and 2018-19  was paid by the Company.
The CCD's are accounted as compound instrument. Refer note 12 for the contribution to equity portion of the debt. During the year, waiver of 
interest has been recognised as equity contribution.
s

In accordance with section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013, read along with circular issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs No. 4 / 2013, the Company 

is required to create a debenture redemption reserve amounting to 10% of the value of redeemable debentures out of profits of the Company. 

However, during the year ended March 31, 2023, in the absence of the profit no Debenture Redemption Reserve is created.
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14 Other non-current financial liabilities
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Interest accrued but not due:
- payable to related parties (refer to note 25) -                           5,553.22                    

-                           5,553.22                    

15 Current borrowings
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Secured 
-                           1,640.53                    

Current Maturities of long term debt 390.91                    342.91                       
-                          (6.65)                          

390.91                    1,976.79                    

16 Trade payables
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 27) 53.41                       46.56                          

1,418.81                 606.64                       

1,472.22                 653.20                       
* Refer note 25 for related party transactions
Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Not Due
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years  Total 

i) MSME -         53.41                 -                      -                           -                          53.41                         
ii) Others -         1,384.61            24.93                 4.32                         4.95                        1,418.81                   
iii) Disputed dues-MSME -         -                         -                         -                               -                              -                             
iv) Disputed dues-Others -         -                         -                         -                               -                              -                             

-          1,438.02            24.93                  4.32                          4.95                         1,472.22                    

Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Not Due
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years  Total 

i) MSME -          46.56                  -                       -                            -                           46.56                          
ii) Others 171.09   422.51                6.75                    3.24                          3.06                         606.65                       
iii) Disputed dues-MSME -           -                         -                         -                               -                              -                              
iv) Disputed dues-Others -           -                         -                         -                               -                              -                              

171.09   469.07                6.75                    3.24                          3.06                         653.21                       

Loans and advances from financial institution

Less : Deferred transaction cost

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises*
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17 Other financial liabilities
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Interest accrued on borrowings -                           0.19                            
-                           0.19                            

18 Other current liabilities
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Unearned revenue 21,457.62                                 10,786.37 
Unearned maintenance revenue 42.75                                                        -   
Sinking fund 25.45                                                        -   

8.79                         13.86                          

21,534.61               10,800.23                  

19 Current Provisions
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Provision for onerous contracts 1,843.57                 1,917.93                    

1,843.57                 1,917.93                    

Movement of provision for onerous contracts

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Opening balance                  1,917.93                     1,140.42 
Add: Provided during the year                               -                          777.51 
Less: Utilized/ reversed                        74.36                                  -   
Closing balance 1,843.57                 1,917.93                    

Statutory dues Payable
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20 Revenue from operations
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Revenue from sale of residential units 1,548.59                          -                                      
Other operation revenue

Cancellation fees 3.82                                  10.59                                  
Interest on Delayed Payment 1.69                                  -                                      

1,554.10                          10.59                                  

21 Cost of revenue
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Cost of Construction - Direct Cost 1,548.59                          -                                     
Provision for onerous loss -                                    777.50                                

1,548.59                          777.50                                

22 Finance costs
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Interest expense on:
Compulsorily convertible debentures 195.02                             237.13                                
Deferred transaction cost expense -                                    12.58                                  
Loan from a financial institution 52.41                               226.84                                

247.43                             476.55                                
Less: Interest inventorised to properties under development (247.43)                           (476.55)                              

-                                    -                                      

23 Employee benefits expenses
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Salaries, wages and bonus 15.56                               8.90                                    

15.56                               8.90                                    

24 Other expenses 
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Marketing and sales promotion 152.67                             331.43                                
Brokerage 290.03                             297.81                                
Legal and professional (refer to note 29) 37.19                               14.97                                  
Rates and taxes 83.39                               12.97                                  
Delay Compensation to customer 8.50                                  -                                      
Facility maintenance expenses 12.05                               -                                      
Repairs and maintenance - others 59.74                               43.59                                  
Staff welfare expenses 1.26                                  -                                      
Travelling and conveyance 5.16                                  3.73                                    
Printing and stationery 0.41                                  0.04                                    
Communication 1.59                                  1.62                                    
Miscellaneous expenses 20.91                               7.83                                    
Payment to Statutory Auditors 18.73                               12.10                                  

691.63                             726.09                                
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25 Related party disclosures 1

(i) Names of the related parties and description of relationship 

(a)Enterprises whose control exists Assetz Premium Homes Pte. Ltd., Singapore (Holding Company)
Assetz Group Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore
IPFII Singapore 7 Pte. Ltd., Singapore
IPFII Singapore 4 Pte. Ltd., Singapore

(b)Key management personnel Ben Cameron Salmon, Director
Somasundaram Thiruppathi, Director
Ajetha Bilagali Srinivasa, Director
Santosh Shadadal, Company Secretary (upto December 2022)
Nikita Bhagwani, Company Secretary (From January 2023)

(c) Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited 
Assetz Property Management Services Private Limited 
Assetz Investments & Holdings LLP 
APG Premium Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore
Assetz Buildwell LLP

(ii)The following is the summary of the Company's significant transactions with related parties:
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

 March 31, 2023
For the year ended

 March 31, 2022

Assetz Property Management Services Private Limited
Services availed by the Company 223.85                           353.81                                          

Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 0.64                                11.19                                            

Santhosh Shadadal (CS) (April 2022 to December 2022)
Nikita Bhagwani (CS) (Jan 2023 to March 2023)
Employee benefits expenses 15.56                             8.90                                              

(iii)
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Other current assets
Assetz Property Management Services Private Limited 57.05                             22.05                                           

Trade payables
Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited 12.14                             11.52                                           

Other non-current financial liabilities- interest accrued
IPFII Singapore 7 Pte. Ltd. -                                 1,181.29                                      
APG Premium Holdings Pte. Ltd. -                                 1,054.88                                      
Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited -                                 315.21                                         
IPFII Singapore 4 Pte. Ltd. -                                 3,001.83                                      

Non-current borrowings
IPFII Singapore 7 Pte. Ltd. (Compulsory Convertible Debentures) 3,415.39                       3,415.39                                      
IPFII Singapore 4 Pte. Ltd. (Non-Convertible Debentures Series A) 6,779.75                       9,227.80                                      
APG Premium Holdings Pte. Ltd. (Non-Convertible Debentures Series B) 2,382.07                       3,242.20                                      
Assetz Infrastructure Private Limited 1,061.39                       1,200.00                                      

Amounts outstanding as at the balance sheet date

Particulars

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24, following are details of the transactions during the year with the related parties of the Company:

Enterprises over which key managerial personnel have control or 
significant influence
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26 Retirement benefits

27 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

(i)                              53.41                                             46.56 

(ii)                                     -                                                      -   

(iii)                                     -                                                      -   

(iv)                                     -                                                      -   

(v)                                     -                                                      -   

28 Loss per share

Basic and diluted loss per share

i) Net loss attributable to equity share holders 
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

(756.03)                         (1,556.32)                                     

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares 
(Amount Rs. in lakhs except number of shares and loss per share)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

                38,460                                38,460 
            2,29,000                            2,29,000 
          40,67,154                                      40,67,154 

                        -                                          -   
                        -                                          -   
                        -                                          -   

                  3,846                                  3,846 
            2,29,000                            2,29,000 
          40,67,154                          40,67,154 

(1.76)                             (3.62)                                            
(17.58)                           (36.19)                                          
(17.58)                           (36.19)                                          

Basic and diluted loss per share are same as the effect of potential dilutive shares, which would be anti-dilutive, has not been considered.

29 Auditors’ remuneration (included in legal and professional fees, excluding GST)
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Payment to Auditor as:
(a) Statutory auditor 18.00                             12.10                                           
(b) Reimbursement of expenses 0.36                                              

Technology and other service delivery related recoveries. 0.36                               
Towards out of pocket expenses                                 0.37 

18.73                             12.46                                            

The provision of Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 are not applicable to the Company, as the Company does not
have requisite employees.

Class B Equity shares of INR 100 each

Class C Equity shares of INR 100 each (Including CCD's)

Issued during the year

Class B Equity shares of INR 100 each

Opening balance 

Class C Equity shares of INR 100 each (Including CCD's)

Class C Equity shares of INR 100 each

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Class A equity shares of INR 10 each
Class B equity shares of INR 100 each
Class C equity shares of INR 100 each (Including CCD's)

Class A Equity shares of INR 10 each

Particulars

Class B Equity shares of INR 100 each

Loss per share, basic and diluted
Class A Equity shares of INR 10 each

Weighted average number of equity shares used for calculation of basic loss per share
Class A Equity shares of INR 10 each

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year.

The calculation of loss attributable to equity share holders (including compulsorily convertible debenture holders) and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share calculations are as follows:

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2023 has been made in the
Ind AS financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in
accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars

Net loss for the year, attributable to the equity share holders
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30 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i)  Contingent liabilities
-                                 -                                                

(ii) Commitments*
823.50                          823.50                                         

31 Capital management

32 Debenture redemption premium

# In relation to one of the Company’s land parcel acquired (land survey number 17), the Company has paid Rs. 3,294 lakhs and withheld Rs. 823.50 lakhs (classified as other
commitments) in view of pending litigation relating to the title of the underlying land parcel. The withheld amount is contractually due to be released to the Sellers of the land upon
satisfactory resolution of the ongoing litigation between the Sellers and certain parties. The Court of the Senior Civil Judge & Judicial Magistrate First Class (JMFC), Devanahalli,
Karnataka in a litigation between the Seller and certain parties, had disposed off the matter in favour of the Seller. The matter is currently pending adjudication at the High Court of
Karnataka. The Company’s management believes that the final outcome of this litigation will be favourable and will not impact the Company’s ownership of this land parcel.

* The Company enters into construction contracts with its vendors. The final amounts payable under such contracts will be based on actual measurements and negotiated rates,
which are determinable as and when the work under the said contracts are completed.

The Company’s objective in managing capital is to ensure a stable and strong capital base so as to continue as a going concern and maintain shareholder and creditor confidence. The
Company defines capital as including all components of equity. The Company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital management
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company, to the extent that these do not conflict with the Directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company and the Debenture Holders have entered into an Amendment Agreement to DSA ("Debenture Subscription Agreement") on February 28, 2023. As per the revised
terms,  Series A and Series B debentures shall be partially redeemed as approved by the Board and consented by the holders of the Series A and Series B Debentures.   

On the basis of earlier legal opinion received from the expert legal counsel the Company’s management believes that the redemption premium at the end of the tenure is payable
subject to availability of free cash flows.

The Company has accordingly not recognized the debenture redemption premium provision in the financial results for the year ended March 31, 2023, as based on the current
business plan there is no availability of free cash flows. Based on the financial performance of the project, the Company will update its business plan and evaluate the availability of
free cash flows over the course of the project.

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

a) Commitments under land purchase agreement #
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33 Financial instruments

A Accounting classification and fair value

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)
Carrying amount

March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Current financial assets

Trade receivables 786.14                                                    -                  -                           -   
Cash and cash equivalents 2,836.06                                                 -                  -                           -   
Other financial assets 34.67                                                      -                  -                           -   

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-current financial liabilities

Non-current borrowings 10,855.22                             -                  -                           -   
Current financial liabilities

Trade payables 1,472.22                             -                  -                           -   

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)
Carrying amount

March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Current financial assets

Trade receivables 364.15                                                    -                  -                           -   
Cash and cash equivalents 4,273.20                                                 -                  -                           -   
Other financial assets 28.91                                                      -                  -                           -   

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-current financial liabilities

Non-current borrowings 14,704.78                                               -                  -                           -   
Other non-current financial liabilities 5,553.22                                                 -                  -                           -   

Current financial liabilities
Trade payables 653.20                                                    -                  -                           -   
Other financial liabilities 0.19                                                        -                  -                           -   

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value
Particulars

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy as at March 31, 2023:

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy as at March 31, 2022:

Fair value
Particulars
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34 Financial risk management

Risk management framework

A) Credit risk

i) Cash and cash equivalents

(ii)Trade receivable

B) Liquidity risk

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 

2023
As at March 31, 

2022

Cash and cash equivalents 2,836.06                4,273.20               

Total cash and bank balances 2,836.06                4,273.20               

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable
balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The management continuously monitors the Company's risk
management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Company's primary
focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The
primary market risk to the Company is liquidity risk.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers/ counter party. Credit risk is managed through continuously
monitoring the creditworthiness of parties with whom the Company agrees payment terms in the normal course of business. The Company also
assesses the financial reliability of parties taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and historical payment trends. The
Company's credit exposures are continuously monitored.

The cash and cash equivalents are mainly held with banks/financial institutions which have a very low risk of default and banks/ financial
institutions which are regulated. Management does not expect any of its counterparties to fail to meet its obligations.

Receivables resulting from sale of residential units: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of
ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring  unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. 

The Company's management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to
such risks are overseen by senior management.

The cash and cash equivalents position of the Company is given below: 
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34 Financial risk management (continued)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2023:
(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 years and above Total

Loans and borrowings * 390.91                -                          10,855.22              11,246.13             
Trade payables and other financial liabilities 1,472.22            -                          -                          1,472.22               

Total 1,863.13            -                          12,718.35             

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2022:
(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 years and above Total

Loans and borrowings * -                      390.91                   16,312.60              16,703.51             
Interest accrued 0.19                    -                          5,553.22                5,553.41               
Trade payables and other financial liabilities 653.20                -                          -                          653.20                   

Total 653.39                390.91                   21,865.82              22,910.12             

C) Market risk

i) Foreign currency risk

ii) Interest rate risk

* The above represents minimum repayments in respect of the terms loans. Under the terms agreed with the lenders, the higher of (a) certain 
percentage of the collections from the customers over the project period and (b) the amounts disclosed above, is payable.

As at 31 March 2023

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s non-current and current debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate of borrowings. The Company does not have
any interest rate swaps.

As at March 31, 2022

The Company ensures that there are adequate funds available to meet all their obligations in a timely and cost-effective manner.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company's income. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
The Company incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks.

The Company operates in India and its functional currency is Indian Rupees (‘INR’). There are no receivables, payables and borrowings in any
currency other than INR, which exposes it to foreign currency risk.
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34 Financial risk management (continued)

ii) Interest rate risk (continued)

a) Interest rate sensitivity:

Particulars
1% decrease

March 31, 2023
Variable rate borrowings 16.41                      (16.41)                    
March 31, 2022
Variable rate borrowings 16.41                      16.41                     
* Currently interest is being capitalised to inventory and not shown under finance cost.

Other financial assets and liabilities

1% Increase

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings outstanding at the
balance sheet date. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, as follows:

Profit/ (loss) *

The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities (including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables) are assumed to
approximate their fair values because of the short period to maturity.
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35 Deferred tax

36 Operating segments

37

38 Loans and Advances:

39

40 Other regulatory information

(ix) No schemes of arrangements have been applied or approved by the Competent Authority in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnels and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 
2013) either severally or jointly with any other person.

The Company has incurred losses of Rs. 756.03 Lakhs for the year-ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 Rs 1,556.32 Lakhs) and its accumulated losses amounted to
Rs. 2,005.13 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs 1,787.03 Lakhs) at the said date. The management of the Company believes that based on its mitigations plans which interalia
include, the business plans which envisage adequate cash accruals from its existing projects and monetisation of land parcels, the Company would be able to recover
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business and accordingly, these audited financial results have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Further, Assetz Group Holding Pte. Ltd. and the promoters has also committed continued financial support, if any required, to help the Company meet its obligations.

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceedings has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding Benami property.

(ii) As per Management's analysis, the Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of Companies Act, 1956.
(iii) There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vi) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961). 

(viii) The Company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

In accordance with Ind AS 12 - "Income Taxes" prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company has not recognized any deferred
tax asset in these Ind AS financial statements in the absence of "reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence" that sufficient future taxable income will be
available for set-off. However, the position will be reassessed at every year end and the deferred tax asset will be accounted for, if appropriate.

The Directors of the Company have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108 - Operating Segment. The Company is
predominantly engaged in the business of development of real estate projects and related services, accordingly the CODM review the operations of the Company as
one reportable segment.

The Company operates only in India and accordingly, disclosure of geographical information is not considered relevant.

The Company is not required to spend on Corporate Social Responsibility in the current year, as the company has not met any criteria specified in section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended.
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41 Accounting ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 % change Explanation
Current Ratio Current Assets  Current Liabilities 1.38                      2.24                        63.00% Advance from 

Customers have 
increased during the 
year as bookings have 
started during the 
year.

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt  Shareholder's Equity (9.69)                    (18.11)                     86.89% Accululated losses 
have increased adding 
current year loss but 
liabilities have been 
further settled which 
improves the ratio.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt 
service

 Debt Service (0.45)                    (2.24)                       401.47% Debt service have 
reduced during the 
year as Borrowings 
have been partially 
settled.

Return on Equity (ROE) Net profit after taxes - 
preference dividend

 Average Shareholder's 
Equity 

0.67                      3.96                        486.91% Increase in losses

Inventory turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold  Average Inventory 0.05                      0.03                        -43.04% Due to revenue 
recognition

Trade Receivables Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue (Net)  Average Trade Receivables 2.70                      -                          -100.00% Due to revenue 
recognition

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Purchases of services and 
other expenses (Net)

 Average Trade Payables 3.47                      5.20                        49.72% Increase in Trade 
Payables during the 
year.

Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue (Net)  Average Working Capital 0.11                      -                          -100.00% Due to revenue 
recognition

Net Profit Ratio Net profit  Revenue (0.49)                    -                          -100.00% Incurred losses during 
the year

Return on Capital Employed Earnings before interest 
and taxes

 Capital Employed -                        -                          0.00%

Return on Investment (ROI) Income generated from 
Investments 

 Time weighted average 
investments 

-                        -                          0.00%
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